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UNITED STATES DISTRlCf COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICf OF MINNESOTA 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Plalatlff, 

. ----. ---
JUN 03 200B 

CLEA/(, u.s. DISTRICT COURT 
UINNEAPOUS. MINNESOTA 

v. NO.~ a3 -/1(J.Ji11;r:: 
AGA MEDICAL CORPORATION, 

Defeodaut. 

DEFERRED PROSECUTION 
AGREEMENT 

Defendant AGA Medical Carpontion ("AOA'? a Minneaota corporation. by its 

undersigned attomeys, pursuant to authority granted by AGA's BOaJd of DireclDn, aDd the 

lhlite<\ Statoa Departmcot of Justice, CrimiDal Division, Fraud Section (the "Department of 

lustiW' or "the Dcpar1:meDl") enter into this Deferred Prosecution Asr-nent {"IIIc 

Agreement'? The lenni and cooditions or this Apemont ue as foUoWII: 

Criminal IDformatioo and Ac£eDtaoetl ofRe!pouslbWty 

1. . AGA acocpts and acknowledges that the United States win file a two-count 

orillliDal IDformalion in the United States Distriot Court for the District of MInnoeDta oharging 

AOA with conspiIacy to COIJIInitan offense against the United States. in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 

371, that is. to violate the Foreign Corrupt Praeticoa Act of 1977 ("FCPA,,). as amcoded, IS 

U.S.c. § 78dd-2(a){J) (Count One); and violating the FCPA, IS U.S.C. § 78dd-2(aXl) aDd 18 

U.S.c. § 2 (Count Two). In so doing. AOA Iatowingly waivoa Its right to indictment on thea. 

charges, as well as all rights to a speedy ttlal pursuant to the Sixth.Ame:Ddment 10 the Uuitcd 

SCANNED 
JUN 3 ZOgs 

US. Dl$TRICT COllRT t,:i>LS ~ -------- ... -...... 
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States Constitution, Title 18, United States Code Section 3161, and Federal Rule of Criminal 

Procedure 48(b). In addition, AGA oonaentB to the filing of the Iuformation and the ~ 

in the United States District Court for the District ofMinncsota. 

2. AOA admits, acoopts and aeknowledges that it is respmrslblo fur the acta of ita 

officers, employees and agents, as sct forth in !be Statement of Facta attached hereto as 

"Attaclunent A," and incorporated by referaw. into Ibis Agreement. and that the fiu:Ia described 

in Attachment A are true and IICCU1ato. Should the Department initiate the prosocutjonlbat is 

deferred by this Agreement, AGA agrees that it will noither contest the admissibility of, nor 

conlradict, in BIIY such proceeding, the Statement ofFsets. 

Term o(tIle Agreement 

3. This.As:t-nent is effective for a period beginning on the Iatcst date on whioh BIIY 

party signa it and ending three (3) years and BCvcn (7) calendar days from that dlllo (the "Tcrm"). 

However, AOA agrOOB that, in the event that the Department detmnines, in ita sole disoretion, 

that AOA has knowingly violated any provision of this A&=mont, an ~ or exteuiona of 

tho term of tho Agreement may b. imposed by Dopartment .. in ita sole discretion, fur1lp to a total 

additional time period of one-year. Any exteDslon of the Agreement extends aU !emil of !his 

Agreement for an equivalent period. Conversely. in the evoat the Department fiDds, In ita sole 

discretion, that !hero exists s change in cin:umatancea sofficien/. to oliminat. the oeed fur the 

Monitor, and the other provisions of !his Agreement hIM: beoa satisfied, tho TCIIDl of the 

~ may be terminated early. 
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Voluntary Cooperation 

4. The Department enters into Ibis Apeement bued on the individual facta and 

circumstanccs presented by Ibis case and AOA. Among tho filets considered ware: (a) AOA 

voluntarily and timely' disc:losed the IillBconduct described in the Information and S1aIiemeaI of 

Facts; (b) AGA conducted a thorough internal mveatiption of that misconduct; (c) AOA 

reported all of its findings to the Department; (d) AGA cooperated in the Depllltll1ent's 

investigation of this matter; (e) AGA has undcrtaItea. xemedial JIleIISUlCS as contcmp~ by thia 

Agreement; and (f) AGA hu agreed to continue to coopersle with the Departmeot in any 

in_tigation of the condoct of A!3A and its directon, Offi.OOI8, .,q,loyeell, agents, consultlllls, 

contractors and subcontractors [elating ta vio1atioDs of the FCP A. 

S. During the Term of Ibis Agm:mcm, AGA agrees to coopento t\JJIy with the 

Department, and any other authority or agency, ,domcaIic or forcigD, desigDaIed by the 

Department invcatigating AOA, or any ot" ita presllllt and fanner ditectors, o:lficera, emplo~ 

agents, consultants, contractors and aubCOJltracton, or any other party, in any IIIIIl all mattcn 

ralating to corrupt payments. AGA agrees that ita cooparation shall include, but is DOt llmitDd to, 

the following: 

a. AOA shall lrutht\illy disclose all infunnation with respoot to illl activiIies 

and those of its present end former directors, olJiccrs, employees, agents, COlII1IItanI8, 

conllactors and rubconlnctors. concmling aU matters relating to corrupt payments, relalJld fillse 

books and recorda, and inadequate Intemal controls about which AGA hu any Icoowledp or 

3 

Voluntary Cooperation 

4. The Department enters into Ibis Apeement bued on the individual facta and 

circumstanccs presented by Ibis case and AOA. Among tho filets considered ware: (a) AOA 

voluntarily and timely' disc:losed the IillBconduct described in the Information and S1aIiemeaI of 

Facts; (b) AGA conducted a thorough internal mveatiption of that misconduct; (c) AOA 

reported all of its findings to the Department; (d) AGA cooperated in the Depllltll1ent's 

investigation of this matter; (e) AGA has undcrtaItea. xemedial JIleIISUlCS as contcmp~ by thia 

Agreement; and (f) AGA hu agreed to continue to coopersle with the Departmeot in any 

in_tigation of the condoct of A!3A and its directon, Offi.OOI8, .,q,loyeell, agents, consultlllls, 

contractors and subcontractors [elating ta vio1atioDs of the FCP A. 

S. During the Term of Ibis Agm:mcm, AGA agrees to coopento t\JJIy with the 

Department, and any other authority or agency, ,domcaIic or forcigD, desigDaIed by the 

Department invcatigating AOA, or any ot" ita presllllt and fanner ditectors, o:lficera, emplo~ 

agents, consultants, contractors and aubCOJltracton, or any other party, in any IIIIIl all mattcn 

ralating to corrupt payments. AGA agrees that ita cooparation shall include, but is DOt llmitDd to, 

the following: 

a. AOA shall lrutht\illy disclose all infunnation with respoot to illl activiIies 

and those of its present end former directors, olJiccrs, employees, agents, COlII1IItanI8, 

conllactors and rubconlnctors. concmling aU matters relating to corrupt payments, relalJld fillse 

books and recorda, and inadequate Intemal controls about which AGA hu any Icoowledp or 

3 



Case 0:08-cr-00172     Document 2      Filed 06/03/2008     Page 4 of 35

about which the Department may inquire. This obligation of truthful disclO8Wll lDcIodes the 

obligation of AGA to provide to the Department, upon %eQuest, any document, reconI or other 

tangible Mdence relating to such corrupt payments, books and RCOrds, and in1zImal controls 

about which the Depaltmcllt may inquire of AOA. 

i. 'llw Dcpartmont apecilically reserves the right to request that AGA 

provide tho Department with access to inftnmation, documents; recorda, facilities and/or 

employees that ma.y bo 8Ubject to a claim of attomey-clienl privilege and/or the ~ work­

product doctrine. 

ii. Upon written notica to the Department, AGA specifically rCSCllVes 

tho right to withhold a<:I:C8S to iDformation, docnlDmls, records, 1iIciIities and/or amployees 

baaed upon an II8ICItion of a valid claim of attomay-client privilege or application of the attorney 

work-prodoct doctrine. Such DOtice 8hall includo a general deacription of the ualure of tho 

infinmation, documents, ICCOrds, faciliti .. and/or employees that are beiDg withheld, .. wall as 

the basis fur the claim.. 

ill. In tho event that AOA wilhholds acceaa to the iDfnnnatian, 

documeo.lil, recorda, faciliIiea and/or employees of AGA, the Department may conaider this filet 

in determlning wbather AGA haa fiIIly cooporaled with the Dopartmoot. 

iv. &copt as provided in thia paragraph, AGA shoU IU)t withhold 

from the Departmoot any infonnation, documents, records, fiIciIiIic& and/or emplo)'Ves on the 

basis of an attomoy-client priviI. or work product claim. 
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b. Upon request of the Depar1menl, with respect to any issue relevant to its 

investigation of corrupt PlI}'IIIellts lD COlIIIlIctiOIl with Ibe oporatIons of AGA, related books aDd 

records and inadequate lDtemal CODlroIs, AGA shall dcsignato knowledgeshle ompioycea, agonla 

or attomeya to provide to the Department the lDtlmnation and materials doacrlbed lD Paragraph 

Sea) above, 011 bebalf of AGA. It Is further 1IIIdeutood that AGA must at all times provide 

compl ...... truthful and 8CCWIIle infunnation. 

c. With IeSpoct to all}' iuu= relevant to the Department's lDves~gation of 

conupt payments lD connection with the operations oC AGA, or all}' oC its prosent or former 

subsidiaries or affiUltes, AGA shall usc its bost offorts to malee availablo for interviews or 

testimony. as requested by the Department, pzeaont or futmer directolll. ofticms, employees. 

ascnta md COIlIIUltmta of AOA as wall as tho directon. officers, empillyees, ageoIII and 

consultants of contJactors and aubcontracton. Thia obligalioa iDclucles, but is DOt limited to, 

swom testimony before a federal grand.ilK)' or in &daml trials, as well as intervieWJ with ft:doral 

law enforcement authoritios. Coopcration IDIdor this paragtaph will iDcludo identification of 

willlBasea woo, to Ibe kDow!edgc of AGA, may have matorial infonnation regardlDg tho mattem 

under investigation. 

d. With respect to any information, testimoJly, documenlS, recorda or oIhBr 

tallgiblo evIdenco provided to the DepaIImoIlt purauan1 to this Agraomcnt, AGA COIlSOIl1lI to any 

BIld all disclosures to olhor govmu:oental authorities, whether United Slates authorities or thOBO 

of a foleign govOIllDleot, of such materials as the Depar\mIIIIt, in its solo discretion, ahaU doom 

appropriate. 
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Payment of Monetarv PenaHv 

6. AGA agrees to pay a monotary penalty in tho amount of 52,000,000 10 tho UDited 

States Treasury within ten days of tho eMCUtion of this AgroemIInt. The 52,000,000 penalty ill 

final and shall not be refunded: (a) if the Departmcmt moves to diamiss the InfOIIIIAtion purBIIIDIt 

10 this Agreement; or (b) should the Department later determino that AGA baa lm:achcd this 

Agroomont and bring a prosecution against AGA. FurthcImOIe, JIO!hing in this Agrccmcnt shall 

be doomed an agreemcmt by tho Doplltlmlmt that tho $2,000,000 amollDt is the maXim,,'!' penalty 

• that may be impoacd in any such prosecution, and the Depa:rtmant is not precluded from arguing 

that the Court ahould impose a higher line, although the Department agroea that uudot those 

ciIcumatanGel, it will rec()l1l1l1end to tho Court that tho amolll1l paid under this AgtOClll1allt should 

b. o:II'set against any fino the ColJrt impoaea as pert of ajudgmeot. 

Conditional Release from Criminal Liability 

7. In retum 1br tho :!WI and truthful cooperatiOn of AGA, and compliaDce wilh tho 

terms and conditions of this Agreement, tho Department agrees not to use any Information 

telated to tho conduct dcIcn'bcd. in tho attached Statement ofPlCtI against AGA in Illy criminal 

or civil CBIIO, exoopt: (a) in a proseculion fur peljury or obstruction of juatico; (b) In a 

prosecution for making a fa1se statement; (c) in a prosecution or other proceDdina IeIatin& to any 

crime of violeaco; or (d) in • prosecution or other proccediDg zelalinl to B violatiol1 of any 

provision of Tit1.e 26 of the UDited Stalel Code. In addition, the Department agrees, lIXCopl .. 

provided herein, that it will not bring any criminal or civil case against AGA rc\alcd to the 

COI1duct ofprcsen! IIld fonner diRctora, officen, employees, agents, cooau1tents, CODIIaoims and 
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subcontractors, as described in tho attached St.tcmcot of FlII:ts, or relating to infonnation AOA 

disclosed to the Department prior to tho datil 0Jl which this Agreement was signed. 

&. Thia paragraph does not provide any protection against prosecution for 

1liiY COIl'Upt payments or false aocounting. if any, IDedo in tho future by AGA, or 1liiy of its 

directors, of!icc:n, ""'ployees, agcnJ:s, cODBUllaDt&, coutracloIs and subcontractors inespective of 

whether disclosed by AOA, pW'5Uant to the terms of this /l.grcamont. 

b. This paragraph also does not provide 8I1y protection against ~cution 

for any com!pl payments mado in the past which IIIII not described in the atIIIched Statement of 

Facta or were not disclosed to tho Department prior to tho d..., on which this .Agreement was 

signed. In addition, this paragraph doeB not provide any protection agaInst crlminal prosecution 

of any present or Iimner director, officer, employee, shareholder, agent or consultant of AOA for 

any violations commilted by them. 

Comorate CompO.DC! Program 

8. AGA represents that it hss implClDClltcd and will continue to imp1mnont a 

complianoo and ethics prognun designed to detect ODd proven! violatioas of the FCP A and. other 

spplicablo anti-conuptioD laws tbrougbaut its operations, including those of its .ffiljatea, joint 

ventures, and those of its oontractors and subcontractors, with rcaponaIbiIlties !bat include 

intmactiODS with fonIillll ofticials. Implomemtatlon of those policies and. procedures shall not be 

construed in any future eaforcomcnt proceeding ss providing immunity or IIIDDI06ty for any 

crimea not ctiacloacd to the Departmont as of the date of sil!lling of this Agreement fur which 

AGA would otherwise be ICSpODSible. 
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, 
" 

9. In order to address deficiencies in ita internal controls, policies ud procedures 

regardiDs compliance with the FCP A and other applicable anti-conuptiou laws, AGA represeats 

that it bas UDdertaken, or will undertake in the near-future, in a manner cODSiitent with all of its 

obligations under this Agreement, a review of the oxisting internal controls, pDliciea and 

proced_ within AOA. Where De~1IlY and appropriate, AGA will adopt new or modify 

existing intemal controls, policies and procedures in order to OIII~ that AOA maintain.: (a) a 

system of intemal accounting coDtrols designed. to CIIIIIn the making and lcccping Ilf fair and 

accurate books, reco.aI.iI and acoouots; and (b) a rigorous anti-corruption compliance code 

designed to detect and deter violatiollS of the FCPA and other applicable anti-couuptiOll \aws. 

Tho internal controls syatem and comp1iance code will include, but 11O! be limited to, the 

minimlllll clements set furth in Attachment C. which is inaJ!pOIIIIed by rcfClCllCO infO this 

Independent Corporate Monitor 

10. AGA agrees 10 cagage an indepondont corporate monitor (''the Monitor") witbin 

sixty (60) cakmdar days of signing this Agrccmcnt. W!tbin thirty (30) ca1cmdar days after the 

signing of this Apamant, and albor consultation with the Department, AOA will prDpOSC to the 

Department a candidate to serve as the Monitor. Tbo Monitor shall have, at a minirm.m, the 

following qualifications: 

L demonstIated expertisc with RSpcct to the FCPA, incilldiaa experience 

counso!ing on FCP A issuOR; 
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b. experienco designing and/or reviewing corporate compliaoce policies, 

procedures and Internal controls, Including FCPA-spocifio policies, prooedures and inI=aI 

controls; 

c. tho ability to aOOOS8 aDd deploy resources B8 neoossllI)' to discharge Ibe 

Monitor's duties B8 described in the Agreement; and 

d. sufficient Independence from AOA to enslltO offix:tive and impartial 

performance of tho Monitor's duties as doacribod In the Agreemenl. 

11. Tho Dcpartmont rctaIna Ibe rigbt, In itll sole discretion, to acoopt or reject any 

Monitor proposed by AOA plIIlIUant to the Agreement. In tho event the Department rejocts a 

proposed monitor, AGA shall propose IIJIOlber candidate within ten (10) calendar days aiIm 

receiving notice of the rejection. ThIs proceas shaU continuo until a Monitor acceptable to all 

parties is chosen. The Monitor's term shall be tbreo (3) yom from 1hc dall! on which tbia 

Agreement was signed, snbjcct to cx.tcuaion or early tmmiDation as described in pamgraph 3. 

Th. Monitor's duties and authority, and tho obliplions of AOA wilb respect to tho Moaitor and 

tho Department, are sot forth In Attacbm ... t D, which is inccnporalcd by rc1WeDcc lute tbla 

Agreement. 

Deferred ProaecutloD 

12. In COIl8ideratiOJl of (&.) the paat and future cooperation of AOA described In 

Paragraphs 4 and S above; (b) AOA's payment of a monellUy peoalty of $2,000,000; and (0) 

AOA's adoption and maintenance ofromcdial mcasurea, and indepcIldont review and audit of 
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Buell meaBll11lB, inc1uding the compliance code and review by tho Monitor described in 

Pamgraphs 8 through 11 above, the Department agrees that lID)' jmI8COUUOI1 of AOA for the 

conduct set forth in Ibc attached Statement of Facts, and for Ibc conduct relaling to information 

that AOA discloacd to tho Department, prior to the signillg of this AgrelllJlOllt, be and hereby is 

defemd for the Term oflbis Agreement. 

13. The Department further agrees that if AOA 1hUy complies with aU of its 

obligations under thjs Agreement, tho Departmcmt will not continue tbe criminal ~on 

against AGA descnbed in Pamgraph 1 1Uld, after the Term, this Agreement &ball CIIKpiIe and tho 

Department win move to dismiss the criminal Jnfomumon pending against AOA. 

Bream ottbe AmameDt 

14. If, during !he Term of this Agreement, tho DcpaItment dcterminCll, in its solo 

discretion, that AOA has committed any feloDy under fodenllsw IUbioqucnt to the aignins of 

this Agreement, has. at any time, provided deliberately false, incomploto or mialeadiDg 

inftmDa!ion, or has otherwise "-cbed the Agreomeot, AGA shaIllhereaftor be aubjoct \0 

prosecution for any fedeml crlmiDaJ. violalion ofwbich the DepBIlmeDt has knowledp. Any 

such proaecutiOJlS may be premised 011 infonnation provided by AOA. Any BUch prosecution 

that Is not time-bmed by tha applicable statuto ofllmi1ations on tho date of tho signing of this 

Agreement may be commenced against AOA notwitbataading tho expiration ofthll statuto of 

limitations between the signiDg of this Agzecmcnt and tho expiration of tho Term plus W10 year. 

Thus, by signing this Agreement, AGA agrees that tho ltatute of limltatiODS with rCIlpoctto lID)' 

prosecution lbat is not ~ on the date of this Agracmont shall be toned fur Ibc Term 

plus DOe year. 
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15. In the evOIl! that !he Department dctonnincs that AGA bas breached Ibis 

AgreClDCillt: (a) all statements made by or OD behalf of AGA to the D"I'artmeDt or to the Court, 

Including the attached Statement of Facta, and auy testimony givOQ by AGA before a gnmdjury 

or any ltibunal, at any legislative heariuga whether prior or wbsequen! to this AgreemeDt. or any 

leads derived from such statements or testimony, ahaD be admissible in evidence in any ad all 

criminal proceedings brought by the Department agaiDat AGA; and (b) AGA sbaIl not assOJt any 

claim 1IDlW tho United 8ta ... s ConstilDlicm, IWIc II (f) of the Federal1WIcs of Criminal; 

Procedure, Rnle410 of the Federal Rules ofBvidew:e or aoyotber federalzule, that 81aII:me:ata 

made by or on bellalf of AGA prior or wl>aequcDt 10 ibis Agreement, and lillY leads derived 

thereftolll, should be suppressed. The decisiou whether conduct or statements of any iDdividual 

will be imputed to AOA for the pwpose of determining whclbcr AGA has violated any provialOli 

of this Agreement shall be in the IDle discretion of the Department. 

16. AOA acknowledges that !he Department has made no roprcseotatiODS, UIIIrIIDCeS 

or promiaca concerning what sentence may be impoaed by the Court if AGA breaches tbiI 

Agreement and this matter proceeds to judgment. AGA iUrthcr acknowledges that any 8IIch 

IIelltClDce Is lololy witbin the disc:retion of the CIJIIrt and that IIOthing in this Agreomeot binds Dr 

restricts the Court in the exorcise of such dlscretion. 

Sale or Merger ofAGA 

17. AGA agrees that in the wODl it sells, mer:gcs, or traI1sfiln aU or subataD.tiallyall 

olits business oparatiollS as they exist as of tho dale ofthla AgrecIDCllt, whether such salois 
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structured as a stock or asset aaie, merger or tnmslllr, it shall inelude in any contmol for sale, 

IllIIrgM or transfer a provision binding the purcbaser, or anyauccesaor in interest Ihoreto, to tb6 

ob1igatioos descn1>cd in tbia Agreement. 

PubUc Statemou by AGA 

18. AOA expreasly agrees that it shall Dot, through ptCICIII or future all~, 

ctirectors, officers, employees, agcu18 or any other periOD autborized to speale for AOA IlIIIkc any 

public statement, in litigation or otherwise, contmdictiDg the aoceptance ofresponalbility by 

AGA sot forth above or the facts described in !he attached Slatement of Facts. Any lOCh 

contradictoIy statement sbalI, subject to cure rights of AGA described below, c:oDStituto a Im:ach 

alibis Agreement and AOA 1hareaftlor shall be subject to pmseontion 88 sot forth in Paalgnlpha 

13 and 14 oflbis AgrcemCIII. The decision wheIbor any public &latement by any IWlb pelSOD 

CODtradicting a fact contained in the Statement afFact& will bc impuled to AOA for the putpoac 

of determining whether they have breached this Agroemmt abaIl be at the sole disa"olian af!be 

Department If!be Department detennines that a public Ila1mIieIU by any such pmon 

contmdic18 in whole or in part a &latemen! contained in tho lIlatlmcnt of Facts, tho Department 

shall so notitY AOA, and AOA may avoid a breach of tIUs Agreemant by publicly repudiating 

such atatamant(s) within five (5) business days after notification. ConsistCIII with the obliptions 

of AGA I. set forth above, AGA shall be permitted to rai .. de&wi", and to assert afliImative 

claims in civil and regnlalmy proceedmgs rolating to the mattClll sot forth in tho Slatement of 

Facla. This paragraph does DDt apply to any slatement _de by any present or former employee 

of AGA in !be courso of any criminal, regulatory or oivil caao initiated against aoob individual, 

lIDless such individual is speal:ing on behalf of AGA. 
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19. In CODDeCtiOll with this Agreement, AGA shall nol issue a preas relcaao unless il 

first detetmiDes that tho al of the reIoase is acceplBb\e to the Dopartmant. 

UmitatlOIlI OD BindlDgEffeet of Al!l"e!!!leot 

20. This Agreemenl is binding OD AOA and tho Dopartmont bot specifically does not 

bind any other federal agencies, or any atale, local or i'omgJl law ~enl or regu\alory 

agenci08, although the Dopartment will bring the coopemtlon of AGA and tIS compliance with 

ils olbar obligatiOll8 und ... ddt Agreement, to the attention of sw:h agcociea and authori~08 if 

requested to do so by AGA. 

Complete Agreemeot 

21. This Agn!omenlaela forth all the ImmB of the Deferred Prosecution Agnemont 

between AGA and the Departmel1L No ameodmOlllB, modifications or additions to this 

Agreemenl shall be valid unless they are in writing and ligned by the Department, tho altomcys 

for AGA and a duly authorized repreaeo!ative of AGA. 

~ 

22. Any noti"" to the DepartmerJlllllder this Agreement ahaIl be given bypenooal 

delivery, overnight delivery by a recogoized delivery .00000e or registared or certified mail, in 

each 01188, fur the Departmelll, Bddroased to Mark F. Meoda1lolm (or his sucoeasor), DDputy 

Chief, Fraud Section, Criminal Division, U.S. Department of Justice, fuurtb floor, 1400 New 
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Yolk Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20005 and, for AOA, addressed to Ronald B. Lund, 

Oenoral Counsel, AGA Medical Corporation. Notice shall be effectiw upon actual recclpt by 

AGA. 

AGREED: 

I10RAGA MEDICAL CORPORATION: 

FOR THE DEPARTMENr OF JUSTICE: 

Kelly.lLP 
Counsel for AGA Medical Corporation 

STEVEN A. TYlUU!LL 
Chief; Fraud Section 

~~l.-
David Byboo 
Trial A.ttamay, Flaud Section 

William B. JaoobllOll 
Assistant Chief 

United StaleS Department of Justice 
Fraud Scotion, Criminal Diviaion 
10'" & Constitution AVeJluo, NW 
WashiqIcm, D.C. 20530 
(202) S 14-7023 

Piled at MiDllCllpotiS, MinDasota, on this ~ day or June, 2008. 
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OFFICER'S CERTlFlCATE 

I have read thiB Agreement IUld carefully reviuwed BYery part of it with COUJ1Sel for AGA 

Medical Co!pOl1ltiOD r:' AGA',). I I11lIIerBbmd the temJs of Ibis Agreement IUld vohmlarily agree. 

on behaIt'of AGA, to each ofilB terms. Before signing thiB Agreemenl, I consulted with tho 

auomeyfor AGA. The aUorney fully advised me of the rlghll of AOA, oCpOBsible cIefeoses, of 

the SCI1tencing Guidclinca' provisioJlS, and of the COllliequcncca of entering into this AgreemenL 

I bave carefully reviewed this Agreement with the Board of Dirac tom of AGA. • I bave , 

advised, and caused outside OOUl1liel for AGA to adviso, thetBoard fully ofth .. rigbIB of AGA, of 

possible defcnse.a, of tho Sentencing Guidelines' provialollS, 8lld Drib. C01I8equences ofcatering 

into the AgreemenL 

No promjses or indue_Is ban been made other thm those contained in this 

Agreement. Furtbczmore, no one Ilas threalenc:d or fol'COd me, or to my bwwlcdgc 1lIIY person 

authorizing this Agreement on behalf of AGA, in any way to enter into this Agrecmem. I am 

also satisfied with the attorney's representation In this matter. I certify thet I am an officer of 

AGA 8lld that I bave been duly authorized by AGA to axocuto this Agreement on bcbalf of 

AGA. 

Date-~ tj.. , 2008 

OFFICER'S CERTIFlCATE 
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL 

I am counsel for AGA Medical Corporation (" AGA") in the matter covered by this 

Agreement. In connection with 8UCb representation, I have examined relcvllDt AOA cioc:umeIIbI 

and have di8CUssed this Agreement with the AOA Board ofDinctors. Based on my review of 

the tbzcgoing materials IIDd discussioDB, I am oftbc opinion that: the reprNelltative of AOA baa 

been duly authorized. to enter into this Agreement on behalf otAOA and that this AgrtMalOllt baa 

been d.uly and validly authorized, executed, and delivered on behalf of AGA and is a w,Iid aDd 

binding obligation of AGA. Purther, r have care1Wly reviewed this Agreement with the Board of 

Dlrectora aDd Genoral Cmmsel of AGA. 1 have fully advised them of the righl8 of MAo of 

possiblo defclISe8. of the SenleDciDg Gulde\inss' pmvisioDS and of tho consoquencea of ODtering 

into this Agreement. To my knowledge, the decision of AGA to enter into this ~ is an 

infuoned and voluntary DnC. 

Date: zfks2, 2008 

CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL 

I am counsel for AGA Medical Corporation (" AGA") in the matter covered by this 
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Date: zfks2, 2008 
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ATTACHMENT A 

STATEMENT QFFACfS 

The fullowing Statement ofFact& is incoipOrmd by this referenco as pert of tho 

Deferred Pl'Il6ocution Agreement ("the Agreement") between tho United States Department of 

Justice, Criminal Division, Fraud Section ("tbo DepartmeD1") and AGA Medical COIPOration 

(" AOA") and the parties beteby agree and stipulate that the fOllowing infOrmlllioD is wo IIJId 

aCCUl'llle. As set forth in P8llIguJph 2 of the AgreemOllt, AGA accepts IIJId acknow1c~ that it 

. is respoDlible forthc acts of its ef6cers, employees andageals asset forth below. 

Should th. Department initiate the prosecution that is dofem:d by this Agrceml:lll, AOA 

a&reeB that it will neither contost the admissibility ot; nor contradict, this Statement ofFaets in 

any such proceeding. 

If this matter were to pmcoed to trial, tbo United StaIe8 would provo beyond a 

reasonable doubt, by admissible evidence, til .. facta aIloged in !boo Criminal fuJbrmation filed 

coDtemporaJlOO1l81y with this Agreement. This evidenoo would .. tabllsh !boo followin&: 

1. AGA MEDICAL CORPORATION ("AOA") was incorporated in 

1995 in Minnesota, had its principal place ofbusinoss in Goldoon Valley, Mhmesota, and was a 

"domestio concom" as that term is used in !boo FCPA, IS U.s.C.§ 78dd-2(hXI)(B). 

2.. AGA lIISDUfilctured ODd sold medical dovicea for the minimally iuvuivo 

_t of WJJgeuital heart dofects. AGA marlceled and sold its products in over 90 COUIIbios, 

including !boo Poopl.·s Republic of China r'Olinaj, through a lletWozk of local distributors ODd 

dlroct sal ... 

3. AGA maintained IIID8iI servers at ill GoldeD. Valloy, MiDnoIota, hosdquuterl 

IIIId an omall directed to AGA employees was lent to those emallsorvors. 
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I 
1 

4. From at least March 2000, through in or about late 2002, AGA applied to the 

State IntcJlectual Property Oflie& of the People's Republic of China ("the Chinese Patent 

Office"), an agency of the Chinese government, for pateots Gtl aevenJ. orits products. 

s. From in or about 1995 to the pzesea.t, "Officer A," a U.S. citizel;J, was a high-

raokiDg officec and part owner of AOA, who bad authority to set company polley, CXIDIIaCt with 

dialributol8, biIO and fire employees, set saIcs prices, and approve sales pIle&cs in foreip 

COWlIrieS. 

6. From in or about 1997,througllin or about November 2001, M!!mpIoyaeB," a 

U.s. citizen, was the head ofintematioaal sales for AGA. 

7. Prom in or about December 2001, through in or about early-2007, ''EmploY'''' 

C," a U.S. citizm, was tho head ofintemational sales fbr AOA. 

8. In or about December 1998, AOA entered into IIIl1gfoemenl with. CJUn_ 

company to be the solo distributor of AGA products in China. An employee oftbat COIIIpIIIY, 

"the Chin_ Distributor," a Cbineae cilizeo, was responsible for the AGA _11111 at that 

company and WIll the main point of contact fur AGA. In or about 1999, the Chinese Dinributor 

left his employer to form his own company. AOA moved its business from the initial company 

to the Chinese DlBtriblltor's new oompanyand AGA maiDtained • bualnesa n:lI-tiousbip with the 

Chinese DisIributor and hla company Wltil AGA IUSpcuded the Ihipmeut ofproducti to the 

Chinese Distributor in lUilo 2005. Ou or about AprlI12, 2006, AGA terminated ill agteerI1eut 

with the Chinese Distributor. 
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9. The Chinese Diatn'butor was aWborized to sell AGA products, DegOtiate pDCOII, 

and employ salespeople. The Chinese Diatribulm's primary CIJ8tomB[I were hospitals owned 

and operated by the govermnmrt of China and govemment-empIo,.,.. pbyaioiana working at those 

hospitals. 

10. Government-owned and controlled hospitals in China are "iDatrwncntalitics .. 

of the Chinese government and physicians employed by such hospitals 8(0 "foIeign oflicial8, .. ~ 

those temla arc used in tho FCPA, IS U.S.C. § 78dd-2QlX2)(A). 

11. In or about December 1997, Officer A, on bohalf or AGA, signed and secured a 

distributorship agrllClllCllt with tho company that IhImcmpJoyed tho Cbinoao Dlatribulllr. 

12. On or about December 20, 1997, tho Cbineac Diatrlbu10r sent an IIDI8iI from 

China to Oflicor A in Minneaota infi:)[minB Officer A that hospi1ala ill China were aaking for a 

10% MdlaooUDl" and physicians WIlle asking for a 10% "OI)IIIIDi.";oo" on productB lOki. Tho 

Chilloso Distriblltor furtbor ~ed Officer A !hat if AGA did DOl ao:ccpt thole terms, the 

hospitals and physicians would not purchase AGA', procIuCIII. 

13. In or aboutJanuary 1998, the Cblneso Distributor travelod from China to 

Minnesota to djseUlS with Officer A, BmOIIJI olber things, the prioea that tho Chinosc DIstributor 

would charge for AGA's products and tho kickbacks thaI the ChinIIto Distributor would pay to 

physicians ill China in onlu to indIIce them to pwdwe AOA's products. 

14. On or about July 16, 1998, Officer A sCDt an o-maU to tho Chjnese Diltribulor 

stating: "I UDderatand that the fee you muat pay each physician W8B to be iDc1uded in}'Our selling 

price. II should thorefom not be aniaauo." 
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IS. In or about December 1998, Officei' A, on behalf of AGA, signed and exacutcd a 

second dlstributoJ1lhip agreement with the company that then employed the Chinese Dialributor. 

16. In or about 1999. after the Chinese Distributor loit hi& original employer to start 

hill own oompany, Officer A, CD bebaJf of AOA. entered iDto a distributorship agreament with 

the Chinese Distcbutor's new company. 

17. On or about Fcbruaty 1. 2000. 1110 Chinase Distributor again traveled from China 

to Minnosola to discusa with Officer A. amcmg other 1hiDgB, the prices that tho Chineao; 

Dislributor would charge in China fur AGA's products and 1ho kickbacks that tho Chinese 

Distributor would pay 10 ph)'8icians in China to induc:o thom to purchaso AGA's products. 

18. On or about March 19, 2001, tho ChineM Distributor sent an email from China 

to Employee B in Mimlcaota staling that the Chinese Distributor bad. to that point, paid 

$460,000 in "commiBSiooa" to physicians in China and had slao contacted a Chinese patent 

official to whom he would have to pay money. The Chineie Distributor wrote, "This wook I 

have mllken [sic] an appointment with eme icily peI8OI1 in China knowledge and Patent Protection 

Burean. Any action in China I must pay money to do." 

19. On or about May II, 2001, tho Cbineso Distributor BOnt an email from China 

to Offioor A in Minooaota staling that the Chinnso Distnbutor had met with • Cbinoso patent 

official regarding AOA's patent application and that tho official had agreed to speed up the 

review of AGA's applicatiem and to "solve some problem, in differeat departmcoII in her 

bureau" related to tho application. The Chinese Diatributor uplained in the email that he would 
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have to "sponsor" the patent official ror !hi. work: and asked Officec A if AGA would IgRO to 

cover that cost. By rctum email on Dr about that Sima day. Offioor A agreed, on bcbaIf of AGA, 

to cover the fee to be paid to the Chineso patent oflioial by the Chlnao Distributor, atatiDg. "I 

am still in BgreemOllt with our prior diBCUssions and will cover her fee as long as wo can get tho 

[sic] patent iuued in a timely mlllllllU"." 

20. On or about July 24. 200 I, the Chineae Distn"butorlont an email from China to 

Officer A in Minnesota stating: "Very geed news that your patents have bl:ell taken out ~ tho 

stock and bogun to checIc by tho obaolrvation pooplo. My fiionda told me that if thole are any 

DCWS, they will tell me. I think we will win this war ifwo can get the patent appJOVellDlCllt [sic]. 

I contacted with two oftici.ala working in different departments. They will help us from dit1il:cnt 

ways. They don't know cachctbor and don'tlalow I asked two people to hclpua •.• About 

your DOW product, my friend told me that you sbouId ask your agent to apply tho invent and 

practical. patents sametime [aiel. I can ask my friend to help to approve the pm:tical paIeDt in 

ODO}'lOU and got 10 )Ie8J8 protec:tion." 

21. 00 orabcut FoblUory 6, 2002, tho CbiDC"IO Distributor lent BD email from China 

to Bmp\oyDe C in Minnesota stating: "Please inform [Officer A] don't give up tho application 

fur tha first three pateats in China. I will contact with the officials of China patent bureau apin 

aft .. a.m.ae IlIIW year. Maybe money win holp us." 

22. On or about March 20, 2002, tho Cbinese Distn"butor sem an omaII from China 

infoxming Ofticer A that tho Cbinaao Diatributor had paid $20,000 to tho patent official to 
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approve patents for AOA products and that "ljast ncod the results of patents approved no 

matter what way he do." 

23. On Dr about April 17, 2002, the Chinese DistnDulor sent an email from China 10 

Officer A stating: 'Today my friend teUs me that one of your lUI two patents have been 

approved end the other one will be approved soon," 

24. On or about October 18, 2002, the Chinese DiltnDulor sont an email from China 

to Otliccr A statin,g that the Chinese Diatributcr was c:umally paying a "reward" to each 

physician who purchasod an AOA product In an amount nmgIng fiQm S300 to Sl,ooo pel' 

product purchased. 

25. On or about October 31, 2002, Employee C Belli a memo to Officer A listiug 

1ho thon-cun:ent prloes for various AGA products in China end including a cohmm emitled 

"Reward to Phyaicians," with dollar amounts listed for each product. On or ahout this _ 

date, Employee C bend-wrote a notation ~ "OK, effeclive immediale\y, n althe top ofthia 

memo. 

26. On or about October 21, 2003, Employee Cwrotc a memorandum 10 Officer A 

end other AGA emplO}'eeS reporting OIl hiI recent trip to ChinL The memorandum CODIained a 

chart of then-cwrent priCCI being charged for various AOA products in China end ODntained a 

notation reflecting the BmOuat of the ''r~tes'' aiven by the Chin .... ., Distribntor to physicians. 

27. Oil or aboul December 2, 2003, the Chineao DistnDulor sent an email 10 

Employee C rsgardias priciug fur AGA products in China which stated: "My company &lao DOe<! 

to provide 20% Idckbaelc for physicians IIIId sOJDGt:imes 10% discount to hospltaJa. .. 
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28. On about D"""mber 5, 2003, tho Cbinese Distributer sont an email from China 

to Employee C, explaining how physiciaDs at hospllals In China &elected producIs :fur pmclwe: 

"The physiciaDs suggest thopatieot te use which dovice according [to] tho patient', family 

economic abilliy and tbe kickback." 

29. On or about February 26, 2005, the Chinese Diatributoc sent au CDI8Il from auna 

to Employee C providing Employee C with a list of tbcn-corront priC08 being charged for various 

AOA prodUCI8 In China and informing Employee C that the Cbinese Diatributer waa pa~ 

pbyslciaDs Idckbacb of 15% 10 25% of tho pwcbaae price. 

30. Between 1997 and 200S, AOA regularly &hipped i18 products :from MiJuIeIo1a to 

tho Cbinaae Distn'butor in China, via interstato and international freight carriers, for aa10 by the 

Cbinosc Dis1libotoc at the pri""", and puraoant to tho terms, discus80d and agreed to by AGA., 

Officer A., Employee B, Employee C, tho Cbine&o Dl&tr:ibotor and others. 

31. Between 1997 and 2005, AOA sal •• in China totaled approxbna!eiy $13.5 

million. 
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A'ITACBMENT B 

gR11FICAIE OF CORPORATE RESOLUI'ION 

WHBRBAB, AGA MEDICAL CORPORATION rAGAn or, ''lb. Company") bu been 

engaged in discuaaions with the United States Department of Justice, Criminal Division, Fraud 

Section ("tho Dcpartmont'') in coonection with issues arising in relation 10 certain COlTIIpt 

Pa}ments to foteigo. offic:iala to facilitate the awam of contracts and obtaining busincBS fur the 

Company; and 

WHBRBAS, in order 10 mIOlve 8UCh discussions, it i8 proposed 1hat lb. Companyeator 

into a certain agreement with the Dopartment; and 

WHEREAS the Company's O=nl Couniol, Iogethor with investigative and outsido 

COUIlSOI for the Company, have advi&ed the Board of Direclori ofth .. Company's rights, pollllible 

deC0D8os, the Sentencing GuidelinCl' proviBicms, and the ~ of entoriu,g into IIICh 

agreement with tho Dopartment; 

Therefore, this Board heroby RESOLVES that: 

1. The Company (i) OODBeats 10 the filing in the UD!ted Stataa Diatrict Court fur the 

District ofMlnnesota of a two-count Information charging AGA with conspiracy 10 commit an 

off ...... apinat tho United States, namely, to violate the Foreign Conupt PI1ICIices Act ("l'CPA ") 

(IS U.S.C. I 78dd-2(a)(l), in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371 (Count OU); and the payment of 

bn'bos, in violation of IS U.S.c. § 78dd-2 and 18 U.S.C. § 2 (Count Two); (n) waivCl indictment 

on such charges and enlers into a Defeaed Prosecution Agraement with the Deparlmlml; and (iii) 

agrees to accepI a monetary penalty aaainat AGA of $2,000,000, and 10 pay $2,000,000 10 the 

United States Tmmtry with rorpect 10 the condlIct doscn'bed in thelnformation. 
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2. The General COWlScl, or his delelP'te, is hereby authorized, empowered and 

directed, on behalf of the Company, to execute the Defemd ProaecuIion AgJ:eCmIant 

sub6la1l1ia1ly in such form as reviewed by this Board ofDirecIotl at thilI meeting with such 

changes sa the General Counsel, or his delegate, lIllLy approve; 

3. The General CoWlSel, or his delegate, ia b=by authorized, empowered and 

directed to take any and all actions as may be necessItY or appropriate, and to approvo tbo forms, 

tonoa or provisions of any agreement or other documents as may be necessItY or apprupdate to 

cany out and c1fectuate the purpose and inlont of the foregoing reaolulionr, and 

4. All of the acIions of the General CoWlS.I, which actions would have bcca 

authorized by tho furegoing resolutions except Ibat such actions were talcea prior to tho adoption 

of such resolutions, are hereby severally ratified, oonfumod, approved and adopted sa acIiooa on 

behalf of the Company. 

of Directors 
AGA Medical Corporation 
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ATrACIIMENT C 

. CORPORATE COMPLIANCE PROGRAM 

In onIer to address deficieneills in its internal controls, policies and proccduJw Rg8l1Iing 

complianco wilh the Foreign Com!pt Practices Aot ("FCPA ,,), 1 S U.S.C. U 78dd-I, el HfJ .. and 

other applicable anti-conuption laws, AGA Madical Corporation ("AGA ") agrees to ooDduct, in 

a manner consistent with this ~t, a .teview of ita existing in1emaI controls, policiea and 

procedures. 

Where meceasary and appropriate, AGA further agrcca to adopt DINI or to modifY 

existing internal cool«>ls, policies and procedures in order to ensute tbat il maiutains· (a) a 

system of inleroalaccounting cootrols designed to IIDIIWlIlhal AGA mabs and keeps &ir and 

accurate books, m:ords and acoowrts; and (b) a rigmous anti-conuption oomp1lance code, 

slaDdarda and procedures desipcd to detect and deter violations of !be FCP A and olber 

applicable anti-conuplion laws. At a minimum, this should include, but ought not be Umited to, 

tha followiDg elements, 

I. A clearly articulated corporate policy against violations oftha FCPA and other 

applicable anti-corruplion laws. 

2. A system. of I\nancIaI and accounting procedures, including a system of intomal 

IICCOIIIlIing controls, designed to easuno the main_a of:l8ir and __ te books, m:ords and 

accounts. 

3. Promulgation of oomplianA;e standuds and procecIUleIcleaigned to rodllCO 1ho 

prospect ofviolaliona oftha FCPA, other applicable anti-colI\lption law" and AGA', compllanoo 

code. Th_ standards and procedutushould apply to all direclotS, officers and employees and, 

where DllGeelllll)' and appropriate, 0IIIIIide parties aoting l1li behalf of AGA in forelsn j 
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jtuisdictiODS, including agents, conauitants, rcpreaenlativcs, distributors, teaming partDor8 and 

joint venture partnen (collectively referred to as "agents and buaineas partoera''). 

4. The asaignm<:llll ofreaponaibility to one or more senior coxporate officials of 

AOA for the implementation and oversight of complillDCCl with policles, standards and 

procedures regarding the PCP A and other applicable enti-coauption laWI. Such corporal. 

official(a) shall have tho authority to reportmattClS diIcctIy 10 AOA's Board ofDirecIoIs-

S. Mochanisms designed. to easure thel the policies, Blandazds and procedures of 

AOA regarding the FCP A and other applicable anti-corruplion laws are effectively 

comnmnlceted to all directors, officers, employees and, wbere _sa<y and approprialc, agents 

and business partrulIll. Thea. mocb.ni8m~ sball include: (A) pctiodic Itaining for aU such 

directoD, oll!ccrs, omployecs, agenlll and buaineas partners; and (B) annual certlficatIonB by all 

such directors, oflicera, employ-. agents and business partners, ccrtifyIng compllaDcc with the 

, 
Ii. A:4 effective aystcm tbr: reporting suapccted criminal coaduct audlar vIolUiona of 

the compliaJll:e policies, standards and procedures regarding the PCP A and other applicable anIi-

COttUpliolllaws fur dirccton, officers, employees, agemlt and buaincas partn ... , 

7. Appropriale diaclp1iDary procedures to addms, IlDlODi other 1hiD1III. vlolaliona of 

the FCP A, other applicable anti-com1ption laws or AGA', oompliaJll:e code by director&, 

oflicecs, emp1oyees, asenII and buaiaes8 partDara. 

8. Appropriate due diligcDce requiremClilIll portalniDs to the retention and <mIl'8ight . 

of agents and buBincsa partnen. 

2 

jtuisdictiODS, including agents, conauitants, rcpreaenlativcs, distributors, teaming partDor8 and 

joint venture partnen (collectively referred to as "agents and buaineas partoera''). 

4. The asaignm<:llll ofreaponaibility to one or more senior coxporate officials of 

AOA for the implementation and oversight of complillDCCl with policles, standards and 

procedures regarding the PCP A and other applicable enti-coauption laWI. Such corporal. 

official(a) shall have tho authority to reportmattClS diIcctIy 10 AOA's Board ofDirecIoIs-

S. Mochanisms designed. to easure thel the policies, Blandazds and procedures of 

AOA regarding the FCP A and other applicable anti-corruplion laws are effectively 

comnmnlceted to all directors, officers, employees and, wbere _sa<y and approprialc, agents 

and business partrulIll. Thea. mocb.ni8m~ sball include: (A) pctiodic Itaining for aU such 

directoD, oll!ccrs, omployecs, agenlll and buaineas partners; and (B) annual certlficatIonB by all 

such directors, oflicera, employ-. agents and business partners, ccrtifyIng compllaDcc with the 

, 
Ii. A:4 effective aystcm tbr: reporting suapccted criminal coaduct audlar vIolUiona of 

the compliaJll:e policies, standards and procedures regarding the PCP A and other applicable anIi-

COttUpliolllaws fur dirccton, officers, employees, agemlt and buaincas partn ... , 

7. Appropriale diaclp1iDary procedures to addms, IlDlODi other 1hiD1III. vlolaliona of 

the FCP A, other applicable anti-com1ption laws or AGA', oompliaJll:e code by director&, 

oflicecs, emp1oyees, asenII and buaiaes8 partDara. 

8. Appropriate due diligcDce requiremClilIll portalniDs to the retention and <mIl'8ight . 

of agents and buBincsa partnen. 

2 



Case 0:08-cr-00172     Document 2      Filed 06/03/2008     Page 28 of 35

9. Standard provisiOIlll in agrcealCllll, 1:OI1lraCtB, and rencwala lheroofwitb all 

agents and business partners wbich are designed to pMVenI violations of tho FCPA and othe.-

1IJIP1icab1. anti-coauption laws, which provlsioua may. depending upon the circumSIIIIlCes, 

inclUda: (A) anti-omruption repres.ntations and undertakiDga relating to compliance with the 

FCP A and other applicable aDti-corruption laws; (B) rights toconduot auditB oellla books and 

records of the agent or business partner to ensure comp1iaDce with tho furegoiDg; and (C) rights 

to tenniDBte an ageDt or business partner as a result of any breach of anti-caauptioo ~ and 

regulatioua or representations and llIIIlcrtakiDgs related 10 such matten. 
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ATfACBMENT D 

INDEPENDENT CORPORATE MONITOR 

1. Within sixty (60) calendar days oltho execution of this Agteemcmt, AGA 

MEDICAL CORPORATION C'AGA" or "th. Company'') agrees to engago an independent 

coipOmte monitor (the "MonitoI'') for a period of three (3) yem. Tho MoDitor's primazy 

respOllSibility is to assC88 and monitor the Company's compliance with the terms of this 

Agrl'cment 10 81 to spocifically address and Rduce the risk of any recurn:oce of the C~s 

miBcoDduct, including evalulliing the Company's corpOi'llte compliaace program with %e&pect to 

Ibe Foroip. Conupt Practic<s Act ("FCPA"J, IS U.S.C. §§ 78dd-l, at '81/., and other rolevant 

anti-conuplion laws. Within thirty (30) ca'cmdar days aftor the sigDing of this Agreement, and 

aftor consultation with tho DeparIment, AOA will propose to the Department a c:andidalll to 

serve as the Monia. The Monitor ahaU have, at a minimum, the fbllowinS qualifications: 

a. demonstnted c:l<pcrIise wilb respect to the PCP A, including expericllcc 

counsoling on FCl' A ism ... ; 

b. axpc:rienco desigDi"S and/or tmewiII& oorporate complianco policies, 

proccdw:ea and in!emal coniIOls, including PCP A-specific policies, prococlures and controls; 

c. Ibo ability to access and deploy RSourCCS as neeeHazy to dischar&o the 

Monitor's dnties as de&cn'bed in the Agrecment; and 

d. auflicient independcnco from AGA to cosure Mlective and imputial 

pcribI1IlllllCO of the Monitor's duties as described in tho Ast-aaL 

2. The Department Rteina the right, in Ita 80111 discretion, to aoccpt or rDjcot the 

Monitor proposed by AOA pwsuanl to lb. Agreement. In tbe event tho Department rejects a 

proposed monitor, AfJA sbalI propose another candidate within ten (10) calendar days after 
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receiving notice of the rejection. TIiis procesa Ihall coatiJme until a Monitor acceptable to all 

partiea is cboaen. The MoDitor's tenn Ihall be tbree (3) )Ie8lIl from tho date on which thIa 

Agreement was signed, subject to extension or early temlination as doacrlbed ill Paragraph 3 of 

the Agteemeut. The MoDiIOr's duties and authority, and the obligatio1l8 of AOA with RSpect to 

the MoDitor and the Department. are sel forth below. 

3. AGA agrees that it wi11llOt employ or be aftiliatod with tho Monitor for a period 

of not loss than one year from the date the MoDitor's work has CIldcd. . 

4. Tho Monitor will review and evaluate the effectiveness of AGA's iDtemal 

controls, record-keeping, and finencje\ reportiog policies and procedures as they relate to AOA'. 

compliance with the books and racords, intomal accounting controls and anti-bn"bety provisions 

of the PCP A. and other applicable lUIIi-corruption laws. ThIa review and evaluation sball iDclude 

an lI8Iessment oflbose policiea and procedures as actuaUy impiemeDted. The retention 

agteanont betwoen AOA and the MoDitor will refinnce this A.&raea=I and iDcludo tbj. 

A.greemeDt as an -.:11m"", so the MoniIOr il fWly apprised orbis or her ckltiea and 

responsibilities. 

S. AGA shall coOPllll.to fully witb the MoDitor and the Monitor sballllaw the 

authority to take such reasonable atops as, ill his or her view, may bo _uy to be fully 

Informed about the complillllC8 program of AOA withiD the scope of his or her taIpODIlbilitios 

under this Apement. To that ewI, AOA shall provide the Monitor with access to all 

ioformaIion, documents, 1'CCOIda, facilities and/or employell8 that Call wiIbiD tbe scope of 

rcapoolibilitiea of1he Monitor under this Apement; Any sucb disclosurv by AOA to the 
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Monitor c:oncenUng COllUpt payments, related boob and records ond n:l.ted internal coDlrola 

sball not reliove AGA oeil. obligation trulhlbtly to disclose BUCb matters to tho Dopartme\It. 

•. The parties agree that the Monitor is an Independent third-party, not an 

employee or agent of AGA or the Department, and thaI no aItoDIcy-client relatioDShip ahaU be 

formed betwllOll AGA and the Monitor. 

b. In the ovenl that AGA leeks to withhold nom the Monitor _ to 

infurmatinn, docutneu.Is, II!CO%ds, facilities andIor employcea of AGA on grounds that ~ 

infonnation, documents, records, facilities andIor employees IIlIl protected from discloBmll by 

the attorney-dien! privilege or the attorney work-prodnet docIrino, AGA shall promptly provide 

writton lIOtico of this delennination to the Monitoc and the Dopartmont. Such notice ahaU 

include a 81!IlerBl description of the nature of the information, docnmenta, records, facilities 

and/or omploycea thaI 111'0 being withhold, 88 wen 88 the basis tor the claim. The Department. 

may then consider whether to make a 1Iuthel request for au:oeu to iIUCh information, OOC\1lllents, 

records, facilltiea andIor employeoa, as provided in I"aragraph ~(a) of the Apemnent. 

c. Bl!:cept 88 provided in this paragraph, MJA sball not wilhhold ftom tho 

MonilOlmy infonnatlon, dmmwrts, records, facilities andIor employees on tho baaia of 1111 

altOllUly-cIient priviloao or work product claim. 

6. AGA agreea that: 

a. The MODiIOl ahaU 88_ wholbcr AGA'a Wiling po&ies and procedurea 

am reasonably deail!lled to detect and pmrODt vinlatlons of the PCP A and otba' applicablellllll­

cotruplion laws. 

3 
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b. The Monitor shall evaluate AGA's compliance with tbla Av-ont 

o. The Monltor shall oversee AGA's implementation of and ac:IlIereacD to all 

existing, modified or new policies and procedures relatiDg to FCPA compliance (tho "Policies 

and Procedun>s"), including tho minimum policies and procedures let forth in Attachmcmt C. 

d. The Maniter sbaIl ensure that tho Polioies and Prooedures are 

appropriately desisned to accomplish their goala. 

o. During the tbnse (3) }'\lII1' term, the Manitor shan conduct an iDItial review , 
and prepare an initial report, followed by two foJlow-up reviews and reports as described below: 

(i) With respect te each of the three (3) reviews, after iDItial 

consultations with AOA and the DcpllrtlIUml, the Monill>r shall prepare a written wad plan for 

each =-iew, which shall be ""bmiltod in adV8llOC II> AGA and tho Dcpartmeat for _I. In 

order to condoot an affective initial review and to undentand fully any existing da6ciencies in 
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with tho FCP A and other applicable anti-corruption laws. The Monitor shall provide tho report 

to the Board ofDirectora of AGA and contempoameously transmit copias to Made F. 

Mandolsohn (or his S\lCOCSIOl"), Deputy Chie~ Fraud Section, CriminaJ Division. U.s. 

Department of lustice, 10'" and CoOStilUliOIl Avo., N. W., Bond Bui1diug, FoarIb Floor, 

Washington, DC 20530. The Mou.itor may extend the limo period fbr iS8mmce of the report with 

prior written approval of the Department. 

(iii) Within om:-hundred twenty (120) ca1"'1dv days after .-..iYin& , 

tho Mou.itor'a "'port, AGA ahaII adopt the xeoommendatioos set forth in !be n!pOrt; provided. 

howeve:r, that within sixty (60) ca1endar days after roceiviDg the report, AGA abaIllIdviae the 

Monitor and the Department in writing of any recNDlMIldaliona that AGA CODaidera unduly 

burdeosomo, impractical, costly or otherwise iDalMaable. With respect to any 1IIC('mmeadatlo.a. 

that AGA COJIIidera unduly burdaDsome, impractical, cosily or otherwise iDadviaable, AGA need 

not adopt that rocommandation; instead, AGA may propose in writing an altemative policy, 

procedure or system designed to achieve the same obJoctivo or JlU1P08C, As to any 

recommendation on which AGA and tho Monilorultimately do not aaroe. !he YiOWl of AGA. aud 

the Monitor ahaIl promptly bo brought to tho attention of the Departmont. Tho Deputmonl may 

OOllBider tho Monitor's lCCO"!mNldalion and the Compony'. re&IODI fbr not adopting the 

I'CCQrnmcmletion in determining whether AGA baa tw/y complied with ita obliptiona under this 

AgreemCIIL 

(Iv) The Monitor ahalllIIldortakc two fbllow-up Mvicws to further 

mODItor and asses. whether the poUcioa and ptOOOdunoa of AGA are nlllSMab\y doaigacd to 

dDtect and prevent YioIaiiOllS of the PCP A and other applicable anti-con"llPllon 1ew8. 
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(v) Within sixty (60) calandAf days ofiDitiating each folloW-up 

.mow, the Monitor shall: (A) complete the review; (11) certifywhethcr the anti-bnOery 

oomplilDc. program of AGA, IncludiDg ill policies and procedurea, ill appropdately dosignad 

and impl=ted to Imoure compUance with the PCP A and other applicable aoti-COlIlIplion kwa; 

and (C) lapott on thll Monitot's fiudinBs In tho I81lIO fashion as with lIISpect to tho initial_iow. 

(vi) The first follow-up review and rapolt shall be complemd by one 

year after tho Initial ..mew. 1'hc sooond follow-up rovlcw and report shall be comple~ by one 

year after tha completion of tho first 1'oIIow-up roview. 

(vii) Tho MOIIitor may Wend tho IiID!I period for submissiOll of the 

follow-up raports with prior wrilllm approval oftha Dcpartmant. 

7. In undortakiJIg tho 8I8esllDCDll andrDVicwa described abovo, the Monitor abaII 

fOlIDU\ate concluoloDB bssod OD, 8IIlO11& other thiup: (a) iDspectioD of rolovant dnonnmt., 

including aU tho policies and procodures rolalill& to AGA's 8Dti-oorruption compUanco program; 

(b) ODBite observalionofAGA's syatoms andprocodmos, iDcluding its Intomal controla, recoId. 

keapina and inteIDal audit procedaros; (e) meetiDp wi1h, and lnlmviews of. roIevant employees, 

oflicem, diRctors and olber poxsOns at mutually COIIVCDiIlllt times IDd placos; and (d) aDalyIes, 

studios and tcstlng of AOA', antl-coauplion Ilompliaoco program. 

8. Should tho Monitor, during tho coune olbia or her onpgement, discov. 

credible ovldence that questionable or corrupt payJneDts or questionable or corrupt 1liIDIIfen of 

property or inlmDltl may have belm offmed, promisod, paid or authorized by all)' AGA entity or 

poraou, or any enlity or pelIOD woddng diroctly or iDdirocUy Ibr AGA, or that related fall. 

boob and ecorda have been mainlalnad, tho Monitor BhalI promptly laport such coadact to 
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--- ------

AGA's General CoWlSe1. its Board ofDir1!ctol'8, and its aulside counsel fur further investigation, 

unless the Monitor belioves, In the IIXlII'Oise ofhis or her dlscredou, that such disclosuI1llhould 

be made directly to the Department.· If the Monitor refers the matter only to AGA', Ooo.anl 

COlUIICI, its Board ofDireclors. and its outsido counacl, AGA shall promptly report !be _ to 

!be Department and contemporaoeously IIOtifY the Mollitor that IIIWh zq>OIt hsa been made. If 

AOA fai1s ID malaldisclosure ID the Department within ten (10) calendar days ofthc Monitor', 

report of such conduct ID AOA, the MoD!tor shall iudepcD.dently discloae biB or ber fim!inJlllIo· 

the Department at the address listed ill P8l1Ignph 6(eXiJ) above. Further, ill the event that AOA. 

or any entity or person working diroctly or indirectly fur AOA, remae. ID provide infomlation 

nec:easery fur the perfblID8liCC of the MonilDr'. rcapousibilities, tho MollilDr ahall prcmptIy 

disclO8C thai fact 10 the Depllflmellt. AGA shall DOt tala> any action ID rctallate against the 

Monitor fur any 8IlCh disclosures or fur any other tcII8OIl. Tho Monitor may report o1har CliminIIl 

or regulatory Violatiollll discovCRd in tho COlIl'SC ofperforming his or her duties, in!be_ 

IDIIIIleI' as desorlbed above. 
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